Q & A’s for DTFA01-02-R-02111

1. Is there an incumbent contractor? If so, who?
Answer:  Yes, Price Waterhouse Cooper is the incumbent.


2. Will the Government provide an estimate of the hours required to do the work? 
Answer:  No. This is an IDIQ Contract and Task Orders will specify LOE.

3. Will you provide the responses to questions submitted by other interested bidders?
Answer:  Yes.  Posted at www.asu.faa.gov in contract opportunities as an attachment to the currently posted SIR announcement DTFA01-02-R-02111.

4. There does not appear to be a specific format for the cost proposal section.  Is there an intention to issue one?
Answer:   No. There will not be additional information issued regarding the cost proposal.  Please refer to Section B Supplies/Services & Price/Cost.  Also, Section L

5. Are you requiring a full proposal response (including pricing, reps and certs, contract clause affirmations, etc.) or just a technical response to the statement of work in section C?
Answer:  Full proposals are requested. Please refer to Sections  L and M for proposal instructions and evaluation information. 

6. Part I Section C, para. 3.3.6 (Personnel requirements) says “The Contractor shall assign personnel to perform this task who have or can obtain a secret clearance.”  In Part II Section 1, para. 3.13-8 (Foreign Nationals as Contractor Employees) seems to allow for permanent residents to work on the contract.  Can some of the work be done by permanent residents without a clearance? 
Answer: No.

7. In Part 1, Section C, the paragraph numbering appears to go from 3.1.6 to 9.1. Are some sections missing?
Answer:  The 9.1 is there in error. Please remove- it is part of the deliverables.

8. The RFP lists PKI under the ISS Handbook part of Task 2.  What are the requirements for PKI under this task?  Is this handbook describing a system that is already in place or are these requirements for a future system?
Answer: No.

9. What kind of system does the FAA currently have?  Do they currently have an enterprise management system?  What kinds/brands of security tools do they currently employ?
Answer:  Write handbook policy on the agency use and implementation of PKI on future systems.  The agency does not currently use PKI on a broad basis.

10. Please provide clarification for item 9 in SF-33.  SF-33 line item 9, portions are unreadable.  
Answer:  Item 9 reads: Offers in original and 5 copies for furnishing the supplies or services in the Schedule will be received at the place in the depository specified in Item 8, or if hand-carried located in Room 402 until 1:00 PM local time 3/19/02.  Please note the deadline has been extended to 3/22/02, 1:00 PM.

11. Reference Personnel Requirements (page 8); what is the timeframe for personnel who do not have a current SECRET clearance to obtain such a clearance?
Answer:  Preference is to have clearance at the time of award. Personnel who need to obtain clearances will not be allowed to work on the project until obtained.

12. Reference Deliverable Table, Task 3: Subtask entitled “Documentation and Analysis of IFC at Seattle, WA TRACON,” defines “21 days.”  Are these calendar days?
Answer:  Work days.

13. Reference Facilities:  What is the FAA’s rationale for having an office within a 25-mile radius of FAA HQ building?  Will the FAA extend this to 40 miles?
Answer: Key personnel should be located in an area that allows them to reach the FAA within one hour of being called.

14. Reference C.2- Key Personnel and Technical Skills Requirements:  Is the FAA’s intent to have the Key Senior Functional Analyst perform program management?
Answer:  The Senior Functional Analyst will perform technical and program management duties and will oversee task orders other than the task orders she/he is the technical specialist on.

15. Reference Deliverable Table, starting on page 5:  What is the rationale behind the due dates of Tasks 1,2,3 and 4?  For examples, it appears that some sub-functions in each task should be performed in series, in lieu of parallel, as identified by calendar days after award.
Answer:  These are estimates based on work and are subject to change.  The agency will work with successful bidders and for each task order will negotiate the due dates.

16. Reference Part 1, Section B, para. B1, sub-para. I, II and III:  Services identify only three labor categories (Sr. Functional Analyst, Functional Analyst, Analyst).  Program management and administrative functions are not included in these labor categories.  Please provide direction as to how are these functions needed to be priced in Part I, Section B.  Due to the fact that this is an IDIQ contract, with services over 30 months, program management and administrative features will be hard to allocate without the appropriate labor categories.  Is it the FAA’s intent for the contractor to accomplish these functions within the identified categories?
Answer: No.  An administrative support category has been added.

17. The SOW defines Tasks 1 through 6, all of which incorporate the delivery of written documents.  Preparation of documentation requires technical editors and quality assurance personnel for which there are no labor categories defined in the RFP.  Can these labor categories be added and defined in the proposal?  Can labor categories other than mentioned above be added and defined in the proposal?
Answer: No. Peer review should be adequate.

18. Part IV, Section L states that oral presentations may be required.  How much lead-time will be given in the event oral presentations are required?  Also, what format of briefing, length, and content (technical, cost, etc.) will be expected?
Answer: A five day lead time will be given.  The briefing will be no more than 2 hours: 60 minutes for the presentation, 30 minutes for a question and answer period and 60 minutes for a follow on.

19. The labor category description for Senior Functional Analyst and Functional Analyst require Bachelor degrees.  Can a clause be integrated into the RFP that allows a substitution of experience to meet stated education requirements?
Answer: No substitutions for education will be accepted.


20. Will the contractor create 100% of the documentation from scratch or will the contractor update and revise an existing suite of documents?
Answer:  Agency is in various stages of completion.

21. Part I, Section C, page 5 (Deliverables) states “The Contractor shall provide the following items, as a minimum, but further…” Are the deliverables outlined in Tasks 1-6 expected to be delivered as part of the initial IDIQ contract award or will individual Task Orders/Delivery Orders be issued that may include development of these deliverables?
Answer: Individual task orders will be issued.

22. The FAA is requiring the contractor to maintain an office within a 25-mile radius of the FAA Headquarters building to house contract personnel.  How many contract personnel does the Government anticipate housing at this facility?
Answer:  As many people as you need to perform the contract and meet the requirements.

23. In Section M.1 page 48 the FAA states the award will be made based on best value of the technical response, but on page 50 Cost/Price Proposal will not be rated.  Please clarify the intention of the Government in the evaluation criteria.
Answer: Cost Proposals are evaluated, not rated. Cost reasonableness and realism will be reviewed.  No points, per se will, be awarded, but a degree of risk will be assigned to the proposal.

24. In Section L.1, para. (2) the FAA set a maximum of 15 pages allowable for the resumes of personnel, does this include additional proposed labor categories?
Answer: Yes.

25. How many man-years per labor category does the FAA anticipate utilizing over the life of the contract?
Answer:  This is an IDIQ and the quantities are unknown at this point.

26. Under the Technical Evaluation Factors, each factor contains a listing of multiple criteria.  What is the value of each line item?
Answer:  This is not disclosed.

27. Is there any way to extend the due date for a bid?
Answer:  The deadline for proposals has been extended to March 22, 2002 1:00 PM Standard Eastern Time.

28. How much activity have you seen on this project?  What kind of organizations have you spoken with regarding this opportunity?  Basically, we’re interested in “sizing up” the competition before we dedicate our time to this bid.
Answer:  There is keen interest in this acquisition.  We expect several proposals.

29. In the labor category descriptions, would you please explain the difference between the Sr. Functional Analyst and the Functional Analyst.  The personnel requirements are identical and their duties are also nearly identical.
Answer:  Yes, they are the same with the exception that the Senior Functional Analyst is responsible for the analysis of agency’s needs and will report to the COTR.

30. We believe the Government anticipates that we should include hourly rates in each of the “cells” next to the labor categories in the ITEMS X001 of Section B.  What entry, if any, is supposed to be included in the cell next to the entry “Total Estimated Direct Hours/Labor Cost?”
Answer:  Nothing.  This is being removed and replaced by the Maximum amount of the IDIQ.


31. The SF-33 identifies the existence of a Section J, Attachments.  Are there attachments to this RFP?  

Answer:  There is no Section J attached.  Attachments to this announcement are SIR DTFA01-02-R-02111, SF-33 and Questions and Answers.

32. Is paragraph C.2 simply misplaced in the RFP? Is paragraph 3.0 better marked C.3?  Is there any significance to the number 9.1 under “Documentation?”
Answer:  Please see revised Section C with correct numbering.

33. As we print out the RFP on page 39, the Roman numerals IV and V appear before the paragraph (4).  Are those Roman numerals superfluous?
Answer:  Yes, they are superfluous.

34.  Should we complete the statement on the bottom of Section A, or is that only to be completed by the final awardee?  If we are to complete this part, where should it be placed in our proposal? 
Answer: To be completed by the Final Awardee.

35.   -Reference C.2 Key Personnel and Technical Skills Requirements. The trend in procuring IT Services is to focus on personnel experience rather than quantifying educational background.  Would the Government accept four additional years of relevant experience in lieu of a Bachelor’s degree? 
Answer:  No.

36. –Reference L.1 Technical/Cost Proposal Preparation- (D)(1);  Reference Section M.3 Past Performance Description.- If the offeror is proposing on behalf of a team, can teammates’ past performance be included in the past performance description?  If yes, will the fact that teammates’ experience is proposed be treated as if it were the offeror’s experience or will the evaluation weigh more heavily in favor of an offer where all of the past experience belongs to the offeror?
Answer:  We will review all the prime contractor’s past performance and team members.  More weight will be given to the prime contractor’s data.

37. Reference Section B; Section L.1. D(5).  The pricing instructions in Section B refer to Section L.1, D(5) which, in turn, refer back to the B Tables.  Futhermore,  in L.1, D(5), reference is made to “separate backup support.”  Does the Government plan to issue detailed instructions on the format of the pricing proposal as well as for the backup support?  
Answer:  No- use your discretion in providing data.  We expect many proposals and we should be able to discuss costs outside of the market driven costs.

38. The B Table shows only a column for one rate, but the SIR indicates that both Contractor and Government site work is possible.  Should the offeror propose both Contractor and Government Site rates, or only one rate.  If only one rate is required, please specify which one.
Answer: Refer to answer 22.

39. The SIR does not specify the number of hours the Government wishes to procure through this contract.  Will the Government define the number of hours it is requiring?  If it does, will the hours be specified by Labor Category and site?
Answer:  See #2 answer.

40. If the Government only specifies a total number of hours, or does not specify hours, can the offeror assume that the task defined in the SOW representing approximately six months effort is representative of all of the work to be performed in subsequent six month periods?
Answer:  The amount of work under this contract will be determined by the number of task orders issued.

41.   If the Government wishes only to see the rates by Labor Category, without hours and therefore without full cost, can the Government describe how it intends to factor in Cost/Price proposals as Past Performance, Key Personnel and Technical Description scores become closer between offerors (Section M2)? 
Answer:  We have set up a matrix of possible/probable hours that we will use to see what the “potential” cost might be.  This matrix will be provided to offerors.

42. After award, can additional labor categories be proposed to meet unanticipated requirements?
Answer: Yes.

43. We assume that the B Table amounts for travel include G&A.  Please confirm.
Answer:  ODC’s will be provided on each task order.

44. Reference H.3 (c)(1) – The discussion on the handling charge in this section references Section L.11, which addresses “Expenses related to offeror’s submission.”  There does not appear to be a section addressing the handling charge in the SIR.  Will the Government please provide its requirements for the handling charge?
Answer:  This will vary by company.  It is traditionally the G&A rate unless a company has a separate rate.  Each task order proposal will allow for handling, if any material is involved.

45. Is the management proposal to only consist of Section K (representations and certifications fully completed)?  If not, what other information is expected to be included in the management proposal?  Is the 2-page executive summary to be included in the management proposal? 
Answer:  No. See amendment.

46. How will the management proposal be evaluated?
Answer:   It will be used to determine the extent of risk to the FAA for awarding to the company.

47. Is the length of each Past Performance Description limited to 5 single-spaced typewritten pages or is the length of the Past Performance Descriptions for all six task areas limited to 5 single-spaced typewritten pages?
Answer:  Total page limitation.

48. If oral presentations are required, can a team of people attend the presentation for the offeror and may more than one person make the presentation?
Answer:  Yes, but the Program Manager must be the lead presenter.

49. The SIR requires very detailed, bi-weekly reports that are more consistent with full invoices.  For some companies, bi-weekly reports might not coincide with standard time-sheet reporting requirements.  Would the Government consider making this a monthly requirement?  If this is not acceptable, would the Government accept twice monthly reports on labor hours and costs, and defer reporting on material and other direct costs to the invoice?
Answer:  Yes to both alternatives.

50. Will the Government please describe how Task Orders will be issued?  In particular, will the Government always request a proposal on new Task Orders or revisions to existing ones, or does the Government reserve the right to order services “off the shelf,” without a proposal from the Contractor?
Answer:  We will get a proposal.

51. If the Government issues an RFP, typically how much time will be allowed for proposal preparation?
Answer: The SIR is an RFP.  You have until the deadline.

52. In the event the Government issues an RFP without requesting a proposal, will the contractor have the right to refuse the order?  If it elects to refuse an order, will there be a penalty associated with that refusal?
Answer:  This is a RFP and we expect a technical, management and cost proposal.  The FAA terminology is Screening Information Request (SIR) but it is an RFP.

53. Reference: C3.1- Deliverables- Please specify whether the documents listed in the Deliverables are Draft or Final.  If Draft, the deliverables listing will need to be revised to show Draft, Review and Final dates.  If the Due Dates are for Final documents, please specify how the Government will evaluate the deliverables.
Answer:  These are representational and subject to change. Refer to answer 15.

54. Can you please send me a copy of the SIR and or subsequent RFP/RFQ/RFI for Information Systems Security Policy and Implementation Support for the FAA?
Answer:  Please visit our website at www.asu.faa.gov- Contracts Division, ASU-300; Contracting Opportunities.  There you will find the announcement, SIR and all attachments.

55. Section F.4, Place of Performance, Page 13- “Services called for under this Contract shall be performed at the FAA Washington Headquarters site at the Contractor’s Facility.”  Should the sentence read- “…Headquarters site and at the Contractor’s Facility” or “…Headquarters site or at the Contractor’s Facility?”
Answer: FAA Headquarters and other FAA facilities.

56. Reference Part I, Section B., Page 3- “See L.1.D(5) for Matrix Instructions” There are no directions for the cost matrix in the reference- only information on the number of copies to be submitted.  Are there any specific directions for completing the cost tables?
Answer:  Include “loaded” rates in Part B.  The Matrix is to translate our job titles into yours.

57. What is the intended meaning of the term “Resume” as used in the last sentence of Section L.12 (a) METHOD?
Answer:  It should  read Resumes.

58. Will the IDIQ award be made to one company or will there be multiple awards with subsequent task orders completed?
Answer:  Single award.

59. Is the page count for the resumes included in the 30 page total in the Technical proposal?
Answer:  No See L.12

60. Paragraph C.3.1.7, Please address how the contractor will be reimbursed for airfare/rail fare.
Answer:  Each Task Order will have ODC’s  included if required.

61. Paragraph C.3.17 states travel will be reimbursed IAW JRT; paragraph H.3 states travel will be reimbursed IAW FTR. Which is correct?
Answer:  FTR

62. Paragraph G.1, Is it necessary to submit subcontractor invoices with the contractors invoice?  Under a T&M contract both the contractor and subcontractor employees will be billed at the same time.
Answer:  We will be paying by labor category.  If the labor meets the job requirements it should be billed accordingly.

63. Has there been a budget established for this effort for the first year?
Answer:  Yes. Task Orders will be issued upon award.

64. Section C.3.1.2- How much assistance does the FAA desire for Implementation Orders and Guidelines described in this section?
Answer:  The FAA expects you to gather information, conduct some analysis and make recommendations on what should be in the guidance.  It is the FAA ‘s responsibility to make determinations on what is adopted.

65. Section C.3.1.3- How much assistance does the FAA desire for Integrated Facility Protection described in this section?
Answer:  Refer to answer 64.

66. Section C.3.1.4- How much assistance does the FAA require in LAN Remediation at Regional Offices described in this section?
 Answer:  Refer to answer 64.

67. Section C.3.1.5- How much assistance does the FAA require in the Enterprise Security Program described in this section?
Answer:  Refer to answer 64.

68. Section C.3.1.6- How many meetings does the FAA anticipate and how much briefing materials (number of slides and copies) will the contractor be expected to produce in accordance with Administrative Support described in this section?
Answer: Unknown at this time. Each task order will attempt to devine number of meetings.

69. A number of deliverables are described on Page 5 and 6 of the RFP.  What is the status of these documents (not started, partially completed, updates required, complete, etc.) and what resources will the FAA apply to their creation vs. the resources required of the contractor for this purpose?
Answer: Refer to answer 20.

70. Are sample documents or outlines available for the documents listed on page 5 and 6 of the RFP?  If so, will the FAA supply them to the bidders? 
Answer:  No. Sample documents are not available.

71. Will the management proposal be evaluated?
Answer:  Yes, but not scored.

72. Paragraph H.3 ( c)  references a material handling factor established in Section L.11.  Section L.11 is Expenses related to Offeror Submissions.  Please clarify what is meant in para. H.3.(c ).
Answer:  This has been corrected.

73. Paragraph H.3 (b) states that lodging receipts must be submitted with the invoices.  We request this be changed to read “The Contractor shall retain a copy of the lodging receipt and make it available for audit by the FAA.”
Answer:  No, you may submit copies but you will support payment requests.


74. Paragraph L.1. (5) What volume does the signed copy of the model contract go in?
Answer: The Cost Proposal.

75. Paragraph L.1 (D) (f) How are originals to be submitted; i.e., clipped, banded, spiral bound, etc.
Answer:  Your choice- Please allow for ease of review of the proposals see L.1.D.5.F

76. Are tasks 3 and 4 on page 6 to be accomplished simultaneously or sequentially?
Answer: Refer to answer 15.

77.  For task 3, are the IFC documentation and analysis for the four listed facilities to be accomplished simultaneously, or sequentially?
Answer: Mostly sequentially.

78. For technical support tasks (ref., Section C.1.1.- 6) The individual task requirements call for the contractor to “support” and “assist” FAA staff in the various activities.  What level of support and assistance, e.g., staff hours, is required for each task?
Answer: Refer to answer 15.

79. Reference L.1(D)(1) and M.2.  Since past performance is worth 50% of evaluation points, will FAA consider expanding the five-page limitation to the past performance description in order for contractors to adequately address all of the required elements in L.1 (D)(1) for each of the six task areas?
Answer:  No.  Listing contracts, short description and contact points should not take of too much space.  We are not looking for a dissertation on each point.  We are looking for contacts to verify your performance.

